
IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

150 N. MAIN STREET 
IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 8, 2024 
5:35 P.M. 

Walter Bargen, Chair Justin Shattuck, Board Member 
Kim Jorgensen, Secretary-Treasurer Neil Docherty, Board Member  
Stu Davis, Treasurer Steve Robbins, Board Member  

Joi Kempf, Mayor 

A G E N D A 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. CORRESPONDENCE
5. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – I AM Imlay City grant pitch
6. COMMITTEE REPORTS (as needed)

a. City Services Negotiating Committee

7. CONSENT AGENDA APPROVALS (pgs 3-13)
AGENDA 
MEETING MINUTES, regular meeting March 11, 2024; closed session March 11, 2024 
FINANCIAL REPORTS – through March 30, 2024 

DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report 
DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet 

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
a. None

10. NEW BUSINESS:
a. Hispanic Services Funding Request (pgs 15-16) 

b. Millage Capture Determinations (pgs 17-30) 

c. Summer Intern Position (pgs 31-34) 

d. Landscape Architect RFP Results (pgs 35-46) 

e. Board Member Vice Chair Election (pgs 47-48) 

f. Board Member Appointments (pgs 49-50) 

g. Farm Market Manager / DDA Promotions Candidate (pgs 51-54)
h. Pine Tree Replacement (pgs 55-57) 

i. Re-Development Proposal RFP Results (pgs 59-66)

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (pgs 67-71)
12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
14. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director             Posted: April 4, 2024 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: MAY 13, 2024 



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

2



Consent Agenda 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Items Attached: 
a. Meeting Agenda
b. Meeting Minutes

   March 11 Regular Session 
   Closed Session (provided at meeting) 

c. Financial Reports – Ending March 31, 2024
  DDA Expenditure Report = $63,726.15 
  Check Register Report = $21,996.49 
  DDA Credit Card Statement  
  Balance Sheet = $378,837.83 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

Recommendation:   Motion to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

14



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10a. Hispanic Services Center Funding Request 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Margaret DeLuca submitted a funding request to the DDA on behalf of the 
Hispanic Services Center.  The HSC is planning its annual Cinco De Mayo 
Celebration event downtown on Saturday, May 4th.   The location of the 
event will be the same as last year and will include live strolling musicians, 
children’s activities, dancers, and vendors.  They would like participation 
from the DDA for financial assistance with advertising costs. Suggestions 
were made to run advertisements in both the Lapeer County Press and the 
Tri-City Times, social media. 

 

Items Attached: Funding Request Application 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to approve funding for advertising the Hispanic Services Center Cinco 
DeMayo 2024 event in an amount of $1,000.00 

 

15



16



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10b. Capture Determination 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Considering previous Board actions regarding special voted Lapeer millages, current 
requests being presented, and the failure of the Imlay City Public Safety Millage, 
Director Malzahn is recommending DDA Board consider options and best practices 
moving forward for all current and future ballot proposals including: 

• County EMS (ballot proposal 2024 through 2030) 
• County Law Enforcement (voted through 2027) 
• County Senior Services (voted through 2026) 
• County Veterans Affairs (voted 2020 through 2023) (pending August 2024 

primary proposal) 
• County Medical Care Facility (voted through 2027) 
• Any Imlay City Special Voted Millage (public safety not approved Feb 2024) 

 

Items Attached: County EMS Letter of Intent – 03-18-2024 
 County Law Enforcement – County Minutes and Sample Ballot 05-05-2022 
 County Senior Programs – Letter of Intent 04-24-2018 and 04-14-2010 
 Veterans Affairs Committee request for response 
 Tif Plan Excerpt – pgs 10, 28, 30 
 County Spreadsheet Tax Capture Workbook 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

Recommendation:  1) Motion to confirm opt-out status through 2026 for County EMS. 
 
 2) Motion to capture Senior Programs and enter into revenue sharing agreement 

for Imlay City Senior Center beginning winter tax bill 2024. 
 
 3) Motion to capture County Law Enforcement millage beginning winter tax bill 

2024. 
 

17



4) Motion to hereby resolve that we intend to "capture" funds from the extra 
voted countywide millage that will be on the August 2024 primary election ballot 
that would otherwise be earmarked to provide continued support for the 
administration of the Department of Veterans Affairs of Lapeer County, and other 
services to an expanding veteran population; and further, we authorize Christine 
Malzahn to sign the attached Acknowledgment/Letter of Capture Intent and return 
to the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners. 

 
5) Motion to capture TIF funds on all future Lapeer County special-voted ballot 
initiatives. 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



(Sample Motions for your consideration/use if desired 
or use your own wording as you deem appropriate) 

SAMPLE MOTION #1 
(Not Capturing) 

Motion by __ , supported by __ , that the ________ (municipality) 
hereby resolves that we will not "capture" any of the extra voted countywide millage that 
will be on the August 2024 primary election ballot that will be exclusively used for the 
purposes of providing veteran services for a period of six years, commencing in 2024 
through 2029, inclusive, and understand and support its intended purpose of providing 
continued support for the administration of the Department of Veterans Affairs of Lapeer 
County, and other services to an expanding veteran population; and further, we authorize 
the ________ (title) to sign the attached Acknowledgment/Letter of Capture 
Intent and return to the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners prior to Friday April 19th

2024 but no-later-than Monday April 22nd 2024 

SAMPLE MOTION #2 
(Capturing) 

Motion by __ , supported by __ , that the ________ (municipality) 
hereby resolves that we intend to "capture" funds from the extra voted countywide millage 
that will be on the August 2024 primary election ballot that would otherwise be earmarked 
to provide continued support for the administration of the Department of Veterans Affairs 
of Lapeer County, and other services to an expanding veteran population; and further, we 
authorize the ________ (title) to sign the attached Acknowledgment/Letter 
of Capture Intent and return to the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners prior to Friday 
April 19th 2024 but no-later-than Monday April 22nd 2024. 

26



27



28



29



LAPEER
 C

O
U

N
TY

C
APTU

R
ED

 TAXES
C

O
U

N
TY O

N
LY

FYE 12/31/2023

TO
TAL

Public
calculated

PAR
C

EL 
2023

BASE
C

APTU
R

ED
C

O
U

N
TY

SEN
IO

R
M

C
F O

PER
EM

S
Safety

VETER
AN

S
E911

TO
TAL

am
ount

N
U

M
BER

S
TAXABLE VALU

E
YEAR

TAXABLE VALU
E

3.6258
IFT

0.3916
0.3196

0.8814
1.45

0.1813
0

C
apture $$

paid
difference

VILLAG
E O

F N
O

R
TH

 BR
AN

C
H

 (N
B TW

P)
176

8,974,393.00
        

2,565,909.00
          

6,408,484
            

23,235.88
       

-
             

-
                 

-
             

-
             

23,235.88
      

23,235.88
      

VILLAG
E O

F M
ETAM

O
R

A (M
ETAM

O
R

A TW
P)

25,739,728.00
      

4,968,362.00
          

20,771,366
          

75,312.82
       

-
             

-
                 

-
             

-
             

75,312.82
      

75,312.82
      

VILLAG
E O

F C
O

LU
M

BIAVILLE (M
AR

ATH
O

N
 TW

P)
12,783,922.00

      
4,421,464.00

          
8,362,458

            
30,320.60

       
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

             
30,320.60

      
30,320.60

      
VILLAG

E O
F O

TTER
 LAKE (M

AR
ATH

O
N

 TW
P)-R

EAL
6,709,866.00

        
3,984,209.00

          
2,725,657

            
9,882.69

         
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

             
9,882.69

        
9,882.69

        
VILLAG

E O
F O

TTER
 LAKE (M

AR
ATH

O
N

 TW
P)=PP

720,700.00
           

417,800.00
             

302,900
               

1,098.25
         

1,098.25
        

1,098.25
        

VILLAG
E O

F C
LIFFO

R
D

 (BU
R

LIN
G

TO
N

 TW
P)

1,474,300.00
        

945,900.00
             

528,400
               

1,915.87
         

-
             

-
                 

-
             

-
             

1,915.87
        

1,915.87
        

C
ITY O

F IM
LAY C

ITY
24,940,263.00

      
6,589,433.00

          
18,350,830

          
66,536.44

       
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

                
-

             
66,536.44

      
66,536.44

      
(0.00)

             
VILLAG

E O
F D

R
YD

EN
 (D

R
YD

EN
 TW

P)
6,536,619.78

        
2,929,080.00

          
3,607,540

            
13,080.22

       
-

             
-

                 
-

             
5,230.93

       
-

             
-

             
18,311.15

      
18,311.15

      
C

ITY O
F LAPEER

 TIFA 1
546

16,860,571.00
      

3,696,700.00
          

13,163,871
          

47,729.56
       

182.32
       

-
                 

-
             

-
             

47,911.88
      

47,911.88
      

C
ITY O

F LAPEER
 TIFA 2

408
19,181,810.00

      
7,718,705.00

          
11,463,105

          
41,562.93

       
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

             
41,562.93

      
41,562.93

      
C

ITY O
F LAPEER

 TIFA 3
875

99,858,907.00
      

12,148,100.00
        

87,710,807
          

318,021.84
     

-
             

-
                 

-
             

-
             

318,021.84
    

318,021.84
    

C
ITY O

F LAPEER
 D

D
A

498/500
18,778,352.00

      
9,923,650.00

          
8,854,702

            
32,105.38

       
-

             
3,467.50

        
-

             
7,804.53

          
12,839.32

     
-

             
-

             
56,216.73

      
56,216.73

      
C

ITY O
F LAPEER

 D
D

A EXPAN
SIO

N
 E

59
2,401,117.00

        
1,755,519.00

          
645,598

               
-

                  
252.82

           
-

             
569.03

             
936.12

          
-

             
-

             
1,757.96

        
1,757.96

        
C

ITY O
F LAPEER

 D
D

A EXPAN
SIO

N
 W

76
3,684,988.00

        
2,549,423.00

          
1,135,565

            
-

                  
444.69

           
1,000.89

          
1,646.57

       
3,092.14

        
3,092.14

        
C

ITY O
F LAPEER

 LD
FA

51
9,976,035.00

        
-

                          
9,976,035

            
36,171.11

       
1,334.85

    
-

                 
.

-
             

37,505.96
      

37,505.96
      

C
ITY O

F LAPEER
 BR

O
W

N
FIELD

2
709,184.00

           
439,262.00

             
269,922

               
978.68

            
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

             
978.68

           
978.68

           
VILLAG

E O
F ALM

O
N

T (ALM
O

N
T TW

P)
1,058,053.00

        
787,332.00

             
270,721

               
981.58

            
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

             
-

             
-

                 
-

                
VILLAG

E O
F ALM

O
N

T (ALM
O

N
T TW

P)
12,037,611.00

      
3,077,910.00

          
8,959,701

            
32,486.08

       
-

             
-

                 
-

             
-

                   
-

                
-

             
-

             
33,467.66

      
33,467.66

      

C
ity of Lapeer D

D
A Expansion E and W

 does not capture any C
ounty O

perating tax

272,426,419.78
    

68,918,758.00
        

203,507,661.78
   

731,419.94
     

1,517.17
    

-
                 

-
             

-
                   

-
                

-
             

-
             

732,937.11
    

66,536.44
      

666,400.67
    

4,165.00
        

9,374.45
          

20,652.94
     

767,129.50
    767,129.50
    

C
ITY O

F IM
LAY C

ITY - PO
TEN

TIAL C
APTU

R
E

7,176.18
$      

16,333.07
$      

26,608.70
$   

50,117.95
$    

C
ounty C

apture
101-000-211.000
101-253-402.999
\\svr2k19\D

D
A D

irector\Budget  Accounting D
ocs\TAX C

APTU
R

E\C
APTU

R
E2023w

_opt-out.xls
3/25/2024

30



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c. Summer Intern 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background:  Director Malzahn received an employment application for the market manager 
position from Ms. Hernandez. After speaking with her Malzahn didn’t feel it was a 
good fit based on the market season length and availability to manage the whole 
season due to school obligations. However, she recognized Hernandez’s interest 
in working for the city as an excellent opportunity to bring her on board as a paid 
summer intern to assist the DDA and/or city with marketing, promotions, and 
communications with a focus on reaching our Hispanic residents. Her skill set also 
includes website management. The Four County Community Foundation offers a 
Return to Earn paid summer internship program through which they pay $2000 to 
the employer as a co-funding opportunity offered to college-age students. 
Director Malzahn has engaged with the FCCF and is awaiting approval for the 
position. 

 
Items Attached:  Resume 
 
Action Needed:  Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 
 
Recommendation: Motion to hire Ruby Hernandez as a summer intern at a rate of $10.00 per hour, 

20 hours per week for 14 weeks, co-funded by the Four County Community 
Foundation at $2,000 for marketing, promotions, and communication assistance. 

 
 

 

31



32



Four County Community Foundation 

“Return to Earn” Internship Program 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

Four County Community Foundation has connected college student Ruby Hernandez to local business / industry 
host organization Imlay City Downtown Development Authority for an internship that is relevant, structured, and 
supervised.  This internship will give the student the opportunity for hands-on experiential learning relevant to 
their college major. 

Approximate internship dates: 5/20/2024 through 8/23/2024.   

This internship will be considered ☐full-time status or ☒part-time status. 

Approximate shift each day will be 10am – 2pm. 

The Internship Organization shall pay the initial $2,000 to the intern.  Four County Community Foundation will 
then forward $2,000 to the Internship Organization for a total of $4,000 to be paid to the student. 

Note if the payment varies: The Imlay City DDA will pay the intern an hourly rate of $10.00 per hour + FCCF 
reimbursement hourly rate of $7.15 based on 20 hours per week for 14 weeks (280 hours) for a total of $4802.00 
paid to intern 

 

Student Responsibilities 

• Student agrees to work on projects as directed by staff of the internship organization. 
• Students agrees to report to the organization on the dates and times listed above, unless a change has 

been mutually agreed upon. 
• Student agrees to follow the administrative policies of the internship organization, including 

confidentiality policies, personnel practices, and business protocols. 
• Student is responsible for his/her own transportation and living arrangements. 
• Student will attend a two-hour intern cohort meeting weekly via Zoom (to be determined).  

 

Internship Organization Responsibilities 

• Internship organization will provide a planned, supervised program of internship experience for the 
student. 

• Internship organization will maintain a safe, positive, and respectful learning environment for student, 
complying with all applicable non-discrimination laws and regulations.  The parties will not discriminate 
against any person on the basis of race, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, creed, national origin, 
age, disability, or any other basis protected by law. 

• Internship organization will be solely responsible for the manner and means by which the work is 
performed and for maintaining a safe workplace environment for the student. 

• Internship organization will attend a Host Cohort meeting for one hour every other week via Zoom (to be 
determined). 

 

33



Relationship of the Parties 

• Student is not considered an employee of either Four County Community Foundation or of the Internship 
Organization and is not entitled to any benefits, including worker’s compensation, sick leave, vacation 
leave, or health insurance. 

• Internship organization agrees to comply with all applicable employment laws. 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

• This MOU may be terminated by any party (with due cause) upon giving 10 days written notice, and 
student stipend will be prorated accordingly.   

• Four County Community Foundation shall not be liable for any cost, loss, damages, liability, or expense, 
which may arise out of student’s performance of services at internship organization.  The parties agree to 
release and hold harmless Four County Community Foundation from all claims, actions, causes of action, 
suits, judgements, and demands, of any individual or organization. 

• This MOU may not be amended except by a written agreement of the parties. 

Publicity Permission 

The Internship Organization agrees to have photos and articles printed about internship experience. 

Student Intern agrees to have photos and articles printed about internship experience. 

Agreed to by: 

Internship Organization:  Imlay City Downtown Development Authority 

Signature: __________________________________________ Date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

Printed Name:  Christine Malzahn  Title:  Executive DDA Director 

Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org Office Phone: 810-724-2135 ext 1307 

Cell Phone: 5868010166 

 

Student: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Signature: __________________________________________ Date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

Email: Click or tap here to enter text. Office Phone: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Cell Phone: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 

Four County Community Foundation 

Signature: __________________________________________ Date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

Printed Name:  Kathy Dickens Title:  Executive Director 

Email: kdickens@4ccf.org Office Phone:  810-798-0909 Cell Phone: 810-444-8852    

34

mailto:kdickens@4ccf.org


   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10d.  Landscape Architect RFP 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: On February 8th Director Malzahn advertised a bid opportunity for assistance from a 
licensed landscape architect in developing the three pocket park areas in the 
business district.   These have the potential to be developed as a placemaking effort 
by the DDA.  A total of 4 responses were received from the solicitation. 

Items Attached: Summary spreadsheet 
 Johnson Hill Land Ethics - $17,460 
 PEA Group - $86,000 
 Grissim Metz Associates - $31,400 
 Fishbeck - $121,500 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion to retain the services of Johnson Hill Land Ethics in the amount of $17,460 
 

 

 

 

35



Proposals
Firm

 History and 
Experience

Project 
Participants

Tim
eline

Approach
Fixed Fee Costs

Deliverables

Johnson Hill Land ethics Studio
X

X
W

eek of April 15, 2024 to W
eek of 

July 15, 2024
X

$17,460.00 (Estim
ated cost for 

reim
bursem

ent $250.00)
X

Grissim
 M

etz Andriese Associates 
Landscape Architecture

X
X

W
ithin 2 w

eeks of the project 
aw

ard, for about 15 w
eeks total

X
$31,400.00 (Reim

bursable 
expenses w

ill be billed at cost)
X

Pea Group
X

X
Starting in April, Contractor m

ay 
elect to begin in spring of 2025

X
$86,000.00 (Additional item

s (if 
needed) $30,000.00)

X

Fishbeck
X

X
Starting end of April, Construction 
starts O

ctober 2024 and goes until 
M

ay of 2025
X

$121,500.00 (includes 
reim

bursable expenses)
X

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10e. DDA Board Vice Chair Officer 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: On March 11th the resignation letter of Kelly Villaneuva was accepted 
vacating her position as vice chair.  Per the DDA bylaws, a new vice chair shall 
be filled by election of the Board membership. 

 

Items Attached: DDA Bylaws – Article 2 – Officers and Duties 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion to nominate _________________________________ to serve as 

DDA vice chair effective immediately. 
 

 

 

 

47



ARTICLE II 
OFFICERS 

 
Section 2.1 – OFFICERS 
The officers of the Authority shall consist of a chairperson, vice chairperson, secretary and treasurer and 
director if appointed. 
 
Section 2.2 – ANNUAL ELECTION 
The officers of the Authority shall be elected in July of each year by the members of the Board. Each 
officer shall serve for one year or until his or her successor shall take office. Vacancies in office shall be 
filled by election of the Board. 
 
Section 2.3 – DUTIES OF CHAIR 
The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall perform such other duties as they are 
assigned to him or her by the Board. 
 
Section 2.4 – DUTIES OF VICE CHAIR 
The vice chairperson shall preside whenever the chairperson is unavailable. If neither the chairperson nor 
the vice chairperson is available to preside at a meeting, a temporary presiding officer shall be elected for 
that meeting. 
 
Section 2.5 – DUTIES OF SECRETARY 
The Board may employ and fix the compensation of a secretary, who shall maintain custody of the official 
seal and records, books, documents, or other papers not required to be maintained by the treasurer. The 
secretary shall attend meetings of the Board and keep a record of the proceedings and shall perform such 
other duties delegated by the Board. 
 
Section 2.6 – DUTIES OF TREASURER 
The treasurer of the City of Imlay City will be asked to serve as the DDA treasurer. They shall keep the 
financial records of the Authority and who, together with the Director, if any, shall approve all accounts 
payable vouchers for the expenditure of funds of the Authority. The treasurer shall perform such other 
duties as may be delegated to him or her by the Board and shall furnish bond in an amount prescribed by 
the City of Imlay City Charter. 
 

Section 2.7 – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
The Board may employ and fix the compensation of a director, subject to the approval of the City of Imlay 
City Commission. The director shall serve at the pleasure of the board. A member of the Board is not 
eligible to hold the position of director. Before entering upon the duties of the office, the director shall 
take and subscribe to the constitutional oath and furnish bond by posting a bond in the amount of $5,000 
payable to the Authority for the use and benefit of the Authority, approved by the Board, and filed with 
the Clerk of the City of Imlay City, if not covered by the City’s Municipal Insurance policy. The premium on 
the bond shall be considered an operating expense of the Authority, payable from funds available to the 
Authority for the expense of operation. The director shall be the chief executive officer of the Authority. 
Subject to the approval of the Board, the director shall supervise and be responsible for the preparation of 
plans and the performance of the functions of the authority in the manner authorized by Public Act No. 
197 of 1975. The director shall attend the meetings of the Board and shall render to the Board and the 
governing body a regular report covering the activities and financial condition of the Authority. If the 
director is absent or disabled, the Board may designate a qualified person as acting director to perform 
the duties of the office, the acting director shall take and subscribe to the constitutional oath and furnish a 
bond as required by the director. The director shall furnish the Board with information or reports 
governing the operations of the Authority, as the Board requires. 
 
 
 

 

48



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10f. DDA Board Membership 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The Board of Directors of the Downtown Development Authority shall be made of a 
board of up to 9 members. Members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to 
approval by the City Commission. Not less than a majority of the members shall be 
persons having an interest in property located in the downtown district or officers, 
members, trustees, principals, or employees of a legal entity having an interest in 
property located in the downtown district. Not less than 1 of the members shall be a 
resident of the downtown district if the downtown district has 100 or more persons 
residing within it. 

 Due to the recent resignations of two long-standing board members, the DDA is 
operating with only 7 members.  Director Malzahn is recommending that advertising 
for new members be posted and letters of interest be submitted to the Mayor for 
appointment consideration as soon as possible. 

 

Items Attached: DDA Bylaws – Article 1 – Board Membership 
 

Action Needed: Advertise and recruit qualified candidates to serve as board members. 

 

 

 

49



ADOPTED MARCH 11, 2024 

THE CITY OF IMLAY CITY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
BYLAWS 

ARTICLE I 
BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1.1 – BOARD MAKEUP 
The Board of Directors of the Downtown Development Authority shall be made of a board of up to 9 
members. Members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to approval by the City Commission. Not 
less than a majority of the members shall be persons having an interest in property located in the 
downtown district or officers, members, trustees, principals, or employees of a legal entity having an 
interest in property located in the downtown district. Not less than 1 of the members shall be a resident of 
the downtown district if the downtown district has 100 or more persons residing within it. 

Section 1.2 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
A member of the Board who has a direct interest, whether personal or financial, in any matter before the 
Authority shall be deemed to have a conflict of interest and shall comply with the conflict-of-interest 
policy as adopted by the Board. 

The conflict shall be disclosed to the Board prior to any action by the Authority with respect to the matter. 
The disclosure shall become a part of the record. Any member making such a disclosure shall then refrain 
from participating in the Authority’s decision-making process, which would include comments and or 
discussion relative to the matter. The Board members and the Authority shall comply with Michigan Public 
Act 317 of 1968 as amended, being Michigan Compiled Law 15.321 et. seq., or any other Michigan statute 
governing conflict of interest of Downtown Development Authority members then in effect. 

Section 1.3 – OATH OF OFFICE 
Before assuming the duties of office, a member of the Board shall qualify by taking and subscribing to the 
constitutional oath of office. 

Section 1.4 – REMOVAL FROM BOARD 
A member of the Downtown Development Authority may be removed by the City Commission, after 
written charges and a public hearing, for nonfeasance, misfeasance, or malfeasance in office according to 
the following definitions: 
o Malfeasance is acting in a wrongful, dishonest, or illegal way in his/her capacity as a DDA director.
o Misfeasance is acting in a legal but harmful way to the objectives of the Authority as a DDA director.
o Nonfeasance is abstaining from voting where no conflict of interest exists.

Sufficient cause for removal includes, but is not limited to, a director of the board acquiring unexcused 
absences at three consecutive regular meetings, or 25 percent of such meetings in any calendar year. The 
member shall be deemed to have vacated their office, and the City Commission may declare said office 
vacant. Upon such office being declared vacant, the Mayor shall appoint with the approval of the City 
Commission a new member to fill such vacancy for the unexpired term. 

Section 1.5 – COMPENSATION 
Board members shall serve without compensation for attendance at meetings, but may be reimbursed for 
reasonable expenses as incurred in the performance of their duties as approved by the DDA Board. 

50



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10g. Farm Market/DDA Promotions Asst. Candidate 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: DDA Director Malzahn reviewed 4 applications received for the open employment 
position and is recommending Christina Maupin (Tina).  Tina has a wide range of 
expertise in organization, sales and marketing.  She owned and operated several 
small businesses in Texas before relocating to Michigan.  

 

Items Attached: Resume 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion to accept the recommendation to hire Christina Maupin as the Farm Market 

Manager/DDA Promotions Asst at a rate of $16 per hour. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



52



53



54



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10h.  Pine Tree Replacement 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Dan Weingartz, holiday décor installer, reported last season that the pine 
tree currently used for the holiday tree lighting ceremony is diseased and 
failing.  After inspections and discussions with Dan, Director Malzahn is 
recommending that the DDA purchase and install a new tree now so that it 
can become established and serve as the new holiday tree within the next 
few years.  Weingartz is recommending that the pine tree that is leaning 
towards the gazebo be removed and the new tree be planted near that 
location, pending utility markings. 

 

Items Attached: Weingartz Tree Removal Estimate 
 Schutz’s Tree Farm Estimate 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion to approve the removal of existing pine located near the gazebo and 

installation of new 16’ Concolor Pine at a price not to exceed $3,100. 
 

 

 

55



 

56



57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

58



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10i.  Re-Development Proposal RFP Results 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA and City issued a RFP for the re-development of the 3 blighted 
parcels on Third Street.  One submission was received from Nona’s 
Traditional Recipes. 

 

Items Attached: Project Proposal 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion authorizing Director Malzahn to draft and submit letter of support on 

behalf of the DDA to City Commission to accept Nona’s Traditional Recipes. 
 

 

 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



Directors Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: April 8, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Items Attached: April Report 
Weekly email Reposts 

Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

67



Director’s Report – April 2024 

Promotions/Events 
• On-going Social media postings and engagement with downtown merchants on Facebook.
• Updated website calendar of events and other happenings
• Trivia Banners are up and I’ve begun a Tuesday Trivia weekly posting of one banner on Facebook
• Recorded “The Pulse” podcast with Dana Walker from the MDA

Economic Development 
• Issued RFP for 3-city-owned sites.  Met with potential developer
• Registered with the Michigan Small Business Development Center for assistance with the IC Façade Corp.
• 150 Bancroft property listing agreement has been completed, listing is live on MLS
• Drafted Marijuana Ordinance for review by subcommittee.  Subcommittee has put questions

on community survey seeking input from stakeholders before moving forward.

Place Making/Streetscape 
• Met with the Historical Museum and presented the I AM Imlay City Pitch
• Held pre-season meeting with Cindy from GreenScape Solutions for upcoming spring clean-up

and plantings
• EMC sign deposit was sent to Metro Signs, equipment has been ordered, awaiting install date.
• Drafted the revised Sidewalk Ordinance 20 to include snow removal requirements, this has

been submitted to city manager, and will be presented to city commission for 1st reading.

Grants: 
• Submitted $8000 grant request to Four County Community Foundation for the Bike Rack/Community

Information Centers
• Attended a Teams meeting for EV Grant Agreement with Department of Transportation officials
• Prepared presentation, banner prototype, and recordings for the Consumer’s Energy grant for the I AM

Imlay City art project

Farmers Market: 
• Interviewed 3 market manager candidates
• Attended webinar on Cottage Food Law Training class
• Submitted 2023 end-of-season reporting for food assistance programs

Billboard: 
• Have a request from Heritage Church to sponsor the space for the month of May

Meetings and Other:  
• Attended Rotary Club weekly meetings.
• Processed invoices, check requests, and mailed payments.
• Made updates to the DDA website for current meeting information.
• Attended the City Commission meeting on March 19th for CN Lease agenda item
• Attended the City Commission meeting on April 2nd for DDA Budget and CN Lease agenda items
• Attended Bidnet teams meeting for training on bid postings
• Attended Department Head meeting
• Attended monthly Lapeer DDA lunch meeting
• Prepared meeting agendas, action item sheets, and board packets for the April 8 DDA meeting

68



1

Christine Malzahn

From: Christine Malzahn <ddadirector@imlaycity.org>
Sent: Friday, March 22, 2024 10:32 AM
To: jshattuck@icdda.com; kjorgensen@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; 

srobbins@icdda.com; wbargen@icdda.com; jkempf@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending March 22
Attachments: 2024.03.11 Meeting Minutes.docx; Memo of Understanding City Commission and CN Lease.docx; I 

AM memo.refined v3.docx

Happy Snowy Friday All, 

Here is a quick recap of what has been happening in the DDA office this week.  

AƩached are the meeƟng minutes for the March 11th regular session meeƟng.  Kindly let me know if you find anything 
that needs ediƟng.  I will provide you with the closed session and the façade corp at your place's next meeƟng. 

I have spent the majority of my Ɵme wriƟng an RFP for the 3 vacant parcels (Firehall, DPW, Sign Shop).  This was 
presented to the City Commission this past Tuesday as a maƩer of procedure.  I've been working with a new business 
and their investor to bring their investment to Imlay City at that locaƟon.  I received their leƩer of intent last week.  Out 
of an abundance of transparency Craig and I felt it necessary to re-issue the RFP so that any comers have equal 
opportunity to submit their proposals.  The deadline is April 4th.  I also re-designed the firehall markeƟng brochure to 
show more use opƟons for the property other than just a brewery.  All of the documents are on our website if you’d like 
to read them or share them with potenƟal developers you may know. 

The sign replacement equipment has been ordered, not sure when the installaƟon will be, but the process has been 
started. 

Along with the development RFP, I presented to City Commission a LeƩer of Understanding for the CN Rail lease last 
Tuesday.  The leƩer (aƩached) details your decision to assume the funding but request that the commission assume the 
lease liability.  The City commission DID NOT like the lease terms any more than we did, and requested it be sent to legal 
counsel for review and possibly a renegoƟated contract.  It may mean that we could potenƟally lose the viewing 
plaƞorm and part of the parking lot, so I will keep you updated as things evolve. 

The Landscape Architect RFP submissions are in – we received 4 proposals and I’m shocked at the range of pricing.  They 
range from $121,000 to $17,000.  I have not had Ɵme to dig in to them yet as I don’t think this is a priority. 

Lastly, I conƟnue to refine our pitch proposal for the I AM Imlay City project.  JusƟn will be presenƟng this with me at the 
CEDM conference on April 29th, but the presentaƟon must be turn in by April 9th.  AƩached is the newest version and I’d 
love to get your feedback or recommendaƟons on its clarity and ability to convince the judges to award us 
funding.  Here is the criteria we have to follow for background: 

Presentation should include answers to the following questions:  

 What gives your community rural character?

 How does your idea put your community on the map?

 How is your project unique to your community?

 Who are you collaborating with in your community?

 How will you use the funding?

 What is the budget total for the project?

69



2

Judging Criteria  
 Projects presented will be judged based on the following criteria:
 Probability project will be launched and sustained over time

 Degree of innovation and potential to disrupt the status quo

 Community collaboration with a strong public/private component

 Demonstrated energy to build momentum and engage the community

 Likelihood project will be replicated in other rural communities

 Community served by Consumers Energy

Thank you for your Ɵme… and Happy Spring??? 

Christine Malzahn 
DDA ExecuƟve Director 
City of Imlay City 
150 North Main Street 
Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307 
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org 

70



1

Christine Malzahn

From: Christine Malzahn <ddadirector@imlaycity.org>
Sent: Thursday, March 28, 2024 12:55 PM
To: jkempf@imlaycity.org; jshattuck@icdda.com; kjorgensen@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; 

sdavis@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; wbargen@icdda.com
Subject: Week Ending March 29th
Attachments: 2024.04.08 Agenda.doc; FCCF - Bike Rack Grant.docx

Happy Friday, 

This week's acƟviƟes have preƩy much been dedicated to two grants – working on the narraƟve and powerpoint 
presentaƟon for our I AM Imlay City Pitch, and a new applicaƟon to the Four County FoundaƟon for our Bike 
Rack/Community InformaƟon Center project.  AŌer speaking with Kathy Dickens from the FCCF, I hurried to get an 
applicaƟon in before this round's deadline – March 31st instead of waiƟng unƟl next quarter.  If you are interested in the 
applicaƟon info and narraƟve I’m aƩaching it for your reading pleasure.  In the applicaƟon the anƟcipated project cost is 
$16,430 for 3 units and I am requesƟng on your behalf a $8,000 grant. 

Since this is a short work week and I have a planned PTO day for next Friday, I’ve also been focusing efforts on your next 
meeƟng packet.  Agenda is aƩached. 

Wishing you all a Blessed Easter! 

Christine Malzahn 
DDA ExecuƟve Director 
City of Imlay City 
150 North Main Street 
Imlay City, Michigan 48444 
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307 
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org 

71


	ADP3984.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPFBC3.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting APRIL 8, 2024




